
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643696 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 21 Chwefror 2024 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
 PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Trwyddedu Hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd Yr 
Angel, Penybont Ar Ogwr CF31 4WB /o bell trwy Dimau Microsoft ar Dydd Mawrth, 27 Chwefror 
2024 am 11:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    

 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 6 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 24/05/2023 a 
Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 24/05/2023.  
 

4.  Cais i Ganiatáu defnyddio Brandio Corfforaethol ar Gerbydau sy'n eiddo i 
Veezu  
 

7 - 16 

5.  Trefn Profi Tacsi Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  
 

17 - 20 

6.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643148 / 
643694 / 643513 / 643696. 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
M Lewis 
R Williams 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
J E Pratt 
R J Smith 

RM James 
RJ Collins 
MJ Kearn 
H T Bennett 
A R Berrow 

S J Bletsoe 
H Griffiths 
P W Jenkins 
S Easterbrook 



PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU - DYDD MERCHER, 24 MAI 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU A GYNHALIWYD YN REMOTELY - 
VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS DYDD MERCHER, 24 MAI 2023, AM 09:30 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd M Lewis – Cadeirydd  

 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins J E Pratt R J Smith RM James 
RJ Collins MJ Kearn H T Bennett A R Berrow 
S J Bletsoe H Griffiths P W Jenkins S Easterbrook 

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
R Williams 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Julie Ellams Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau 
Yvonne Witchell Rheolydd Tîm Trwyddedu 
Katie Wintle Cyfreithiwr 

 
18. DATGANIADAU O FUDD 

 
Dim 
 

19. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:       Cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfodydd y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu 

dyddiedig 22 Tachwedd 2022 a 1 Chwefror 2023 fel cofnod 
gwir a chywir. 

 
20. PENODI IS-BWYLLGORAU TRWYDDEDU A DIRPRWYAETHAU I SWYDDOGION 

 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Tîm Trwyddedu adroddiad yn cynnig aelodaeth Is-bwyllgorau'r 
Pwyllgor Trwyddedu yn dilyn Cyfarfod Blynyddol y Cyngor 2023.  Cynigiwyd i'r Pwyllgor 
Trwyddedu barhau â'r trefniadau presennol a chymeradwyo ffurfio dau banel yn eistedd 
ar sail rota, pob un yn cynnwys saith Aelod o'r Pwyllgor Trwyddedu ac yn cael ei 
gadeirio gan Gadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu lle bo hynny'n bosibl. Pe 
na bai'r Cadeirydd neu'r Is-Gadeirydd yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn eu cyfarfod is-
bwyllgor priodol, byddai cadeirydd yn cael ei ethol o blith y rhai a oedd yn bresennol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:        Cymeradwyodd y Pwyllgor ffurfio dau banel yn eistedd ar sail 

rota (fel y rhestrir isod), pob un yn cynnwys saith Aelod o'r 
Pwyllgor Trwyddedu ac a gadeirir gan Gadeirydd ac Is-
gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trwyddedu lle bo hynny'n bosibl. Pe na 
bai'r Cadeirydd neu'r Is-Gadeirydd yn gallu bod yn bresennol yn 
eu cyfarfod is-bwyllgor priodol, byddai cadeirydd yn cael ei 
ethol o blith y rhai a oedd yn bresennol. Byddai'r Is-bwyllgorau 
Trwyddedu hyn yn ymgymryd â swyddogaethau trwyddedu, 
gan gynnwys trwyddedu tacsis a masnachu ar y stryd fel y 
nodir yng Nghyfansoddiad y Cyngor. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU - DYDD MERCHER, 24 MAI 2023 

 
Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu A                                    Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu B 
 
Y Cynghorydd Maxine Lewis – Cadeirydd   Y Cynghorydd Richard Williams – Cadeirydd 
Y Cynghorydd Johanna Llewellyn-Hopkins  Y Cynghorydd Heather Griffiths 
Y Cynghorydd Richard Collins                      Y Cynghorydd Heidi Bennett 
Y Cynghorydd Mike Kearn                            Y Cynghorydd Malcolm James 
Y Cynghorydd Jonathan Pratt                       Y Cynghorydd Rob Smith 
Y Cynghorydd Steven Bletsoe                      Y Cynghorydd Steve Easterbrook 
Y Cynghorydd Anthony Berrow                     Y Cynghorydd Philip Jenkins 
 
 

21. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim   
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 09:45 
 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR DEDDF TRWYDDEDU 2003 - DYDD MERCHER, 24 MAI 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR DEDDF TRWYDDEDU 2003 A GYNHALIWYD YN 
REMOTELY - VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS DYDD MERCHER, 24 MAI 2023, AM 10:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd M Lewis – Cadeirydd  

 
H T Bennett A R Berrow S J Bletsoe RJ Collins 
S Easterbrook H Griffiths P W Jenkins MJ Kearn 
J E Pratt R J Smith R Williams  

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
RM James a/ac J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Julie Ellams Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau 
Katie Wintle Cyfreithiwr 
Yvonne Witchell Rheolydd Tîm Trwyddedu 

 
5. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

 
Dim 
 

6. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:       Bod Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 ar 25 

Mai 2022 yn cael ei gymeradwyo fel cofnod gwir a chywir. 
 

7. DEDDF TRWYDDEDU 2003 A DEDDF HAPCHWARAE 2005 DIRPRWYO 
SWYDDOGAETHAU 
 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Tîm Trwyddedu adroddiad yn nodi'r trefniadau arfaethedig ar 
gyfer awdurdodi swyddogion o dan Ddeddf Trwyddedu 2003 a Deddf Hapchwarae 2005 
ac yn cadarnhau trefniadau ar gyfer ffurfio is-bwyllgorau yn dilyn Cyfarfod Blynyddol y 
Cyngor 2023. 
 
Eglurodd y Rheolwr Tîm Trwyddedu er budd perfformiad effeithiol y bwriedid dirprwyo'r 
cyfrifoldeb am awdurdodi swyddogion i weinyddu gofynion Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 a 
Deddf Hapchwarae 2005, i'r Prif Swyddog - Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol, 
Adnoddau Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol ac i'r Prif Swyddog - Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Rheoleiddiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol gychwyn achos o dan y Deddfau 
hynny. Eglurodd y cynigiwyd hefyd, lle bo'n briodol, bod y Prif Swyddog – 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol, y 
Rheolwr Tîm Trwyddedu (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a Chyngor Bro 
Morgannwg), yr Uwch Swyddog Trwyddedu (Technegol), awdurdodi Uwch Swyddog 
Gorfodi Trwyddedu a Swyddog Polisi Trwyddedu i gydnabod a chyhoeddi Hysbysiadau 
yn ymwneud â Hysbysiadau Digwyddiad Dros Dro; rhoi, gwrthod, atal trwyddedau, 
cofrestriadau, tystysgrifau, hawlenni a hysbysiadau, gweithredu'r darpariaethau 
perthnasol mewn perthynas â throseddau, adolygiadau neu ofynion eraill; yn unol ag 
unrhyw un o’r rheolau, rheoliadau a/neu Orchmynion a wnaed o dan Ddeddf Trwyddedu 
2003 a Deddf Hapchwarae 2005 (fel y’i diwygiwyd).  
 
Eglurodd y Rheolwr Tîm Trwyddedu y gofynnwyd i'r Pwyllgor hefyd gymeradwyo'r 
trefniant presennol o ffurfio Is-bwyllgorau pellach sy'n cynnwys tri Aelod o Bwyllgor 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR DEDDF TRWYDDEDU 2003 - DYDD MERCHER, 24 MAI 2023 

 
Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 i benderfynu ar geisiadau o dan Ddeddf Trwyddedu 2003 a 
Deddf Gamblo 2005. Cynigiwyd y byddai Is-bwyllgorau Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 yn cael 
eu cadeirio gan Gadeirydd neu Is-gadeirydd Pwyllgor Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 lle bo 
hynny'n bosibl. Pe na bai'r Cadeirydd neu'r Is-gadeirydd yn gallu bod yn bresennol, 
byddai cadeirydd yn cael ei ethol.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD:         Defnyddiodd y Pwyllgor ei awdurdod dirprwyedig ac: 
 

1. Awdurdodi'r Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Rheoleiddiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol i 
gychwyn achos o dan y Deddfau a grybwyllir uchod. 

 
2. Awdurdodi'r Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 

Rheoleiddiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Pholisi Corfforaethol, y 
Rheolwr Tîm Trwyddedu (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr a Chyngor Bro Morgannwg), yr Uwch Swyddog 
Trwyddedu (Technegol), yr Uwch Swyddog Gorfodi 
Trwyddedu, a'r Swyddog Polisi Trwyddedu cydnabod a 
chyhoeddi Hysbysiadau yn ymwneud â Hysbysiadau 
Digwyddiad Dros Dro; rhoi, gwrthod, atal trwyddedau, 
cofrestriadau, tystysgrifau, hawlenni a hysbysiadau, 
gweithredu'r darpariaethau perthnasol mewn perthynas â 
throseddau, adolygiadau neu ofynion eraill; yn unol ag unrhyw 
un o’r rheolau, rheoliadau a/neu Orchmynion a wnaed o dan 
Ddeddf Trwyddedu 2003 a Deddf Hapchwarae 2005 (fel y’i 
diwygiwyd). 

 
3. Cymeradwyo'r trefniadau ar gyfer ffurfio Is-bwyllgorau a nodir 

ym mharagraff 3.3 o'r adroddiad. 
 

8. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 10:15 
 

Page 6



 

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE  

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
27 FEBRUARY 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
APPLICATION TO PERMIT THE USE OF CORPORATE 

BRANDING ON VEHICLES OWNED BY VEEZU 
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 

HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 
 

Responsible 
Officer:  

                 
KIRSTY EVANS 

LICENSING TEAM MANAGER 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 
The report content has no direct effect upon the policy 

framework and procedure rules. 
 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

This report is for members to consider a request to permit 
the use of corporate branding on vehicles owned by the 

Veezu group     

 
 

1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to determine whether to permit the use of corporate 

branding on vehicles owned by Veezu.   

2. Background  
 
2.1 The Licensing Department have received an application from Veezu to permit a 

corporate branded livery on vehicles that are owned by the Veezu Group.  
 
2.2 Both the current Private Hire Vehicle and Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence 

Conditions require written approval from Bridgend County Borough for all 
advertisements. 

 
2.3  The Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Conditions state:   
 

“The proprietor shall not display or suffer or permit to be displayed in or on the vehicle 
any advertisement without the prior written approval of the Council. For the purposes 
of this condition, “advertisement” means any word, letter, sign, notice, illumination, 
device or representation in the nature of the advertisement.” 

 
2.4 The Private Hire Vehicle Licence Conditions state: 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 “No signs or advertisements shall be displayed in, on or from the vehicle unless first 
 approved by the Council in writing.”   
 
2.5 Full details of Veezu’s application, including their justification for this request is 

contained in Appendix A.  
 
2.6 A digital impression of the corporate livery intended to be used is contained in 

Appendix B.  
 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Officers have delegated authority to provide approval for advertisements on Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire vehicles. However, as a full livery has been requested on 
all Veezu vehicles, members are requested to determine this application.   

 
3.2 Private Hire and Hackney Carriage vehicles licensed by Bridgend County Borough 

Council must display the licence identification plate on the rear of the vehicle, a 
window licence in the vehicle’s windscreen and door stickers on each of the front 
doors which all identify the vehicle as either a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire 
vehicle. Veezu have advised that the livery will not prevent them from complying with 
these conditions of licence.   

 
3.3 It is not mandatory for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle to advertise or 

display the operator for whom they are connected to, and they may choose not to 
display an operator.  

 
3.4 Veezu will present a vehicle to Members on the day of the meeting in order to 

demonstrate their corporate branding. The vehicle presented during the meeting is 
not currently licensed with Bridgend County Borough Council and the application is 
not for this specific vehicle, but to provide a representation of the livery. 

  
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would 

be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on 
socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not 
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no safeguarding and corporate parent implications arising from this report. 

Page 8



 

 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from the report. 
 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the Committee consider the request by Veezu and determine 

whether to permit them to use a corporate livery on vehicles that are owned by Veezu.  
 
Background documents 
 
None. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



    
 

veezu.co.uk | info@veezu.co.uk | 02920 333 666 

Veezu Holdings Ltd, Hodge House, 114-116 St. Mary Street, Cardiff, CF10 1DY 
Veezu Holdings Ltd is registered in England and Wales, Company Registration No 09379357, VAT Registration No. 225 9395 82  

   

TEM020/BJ/14062023/v3 – Internal Use Only 

P
a

g
e
1

 

Ms Kirsty Evans 

Licensing Team Manager,  

Civic Offices,  

Angel Street,  

Bridgend,  

CF31 4WB 

 

6 November 2023 
 

Dear Ms. Evans and Officers 

 

This application is in respect of Hackney Carriage Vehicles which are owned by the Veezu Group as 

part of its fleet management only and which are associated to the Operators trading name, within 

the Bridgend licensing district. The material appearance will not cause any confusion with the 

approved appearance of Bridgend licensed Private Hire vehicles.  

 

If the approval process requires formal approval by Elected Members, the vehicle to be presented 

to Members as an example of the wrap appearance, is not currently licensed by Bridgend Council 

and the application is not in respect of this vehicle but a policy approval of the corporate wrap. 

 

The attachment to this email is representative of the corporate wrap. 

 

In respect of your licensing conditions, we would make the following observations.  (Members will be 

advised by your legal officer that as a policy, exceptions can be made to that policy when 

appropriate and a policy is not totally binding.) 

 

To support the application, with reference to the relevant Bridgend licensing conditions: 

 

 

HACKNEY CARRIAGES CONDITIONS OF LICENCE 

 

1. All vehicles shall be white in colour. 

Response: The wrap does not change the clear primary white colour of the vehicle.   

 

2. Adhesive signs be affixed on the upper part of the driver and front passenger side doors 

indicating that the vehicle is licensed by the Council with the number of the vehicle in letters 

no smaller than 3" in height. 

Response: The wrap will not intrude on any part of this licensing requirement. 

 

3.  The licence plate shall be fixed and displayed outside on the rear of the vehicle 

directly on or immediately above the bumper in such a position that the vehicle's 

registration mark is not obscured, with the particulars thereon facing outwards 

in such a manner and place that the licence plate is clearly visible by daylight 

from the road at the rear of the vehicle. 

 

       Response: The wrap will not intrude on any part of this licensing requirement. 

 

 

Comment:   We understand the necessity for conformity within the licensing context, particularly 

around Advertising Standards Agency compliance; maintaining the image of the Council in respect 

of some forms of advertisement that do not compliment the status of the licensing district, or the 

Page 11



    
 

veezu.co.uk | info@veezu.co.uk | 02920 333 666 

Veezu Holdings Ltd, Hodge House, 114-116 St. Mary Street, Cardiff, CF10 1DY 
Veezu Holdings Ltd is registered in England and Wales, Company Registration No 09379357, VAT Registration No. 225 9395 82  

   

TEM020/BJ/14062023/v3 – Internal Use Only 

P
a

g
e
2

 

necessary controls on appearance to maintain the professional image of the licensed trade and the 

licensing environment.  

 

However, we do not consider that this design causes conflict with any of those points and is 

uncontentious and is already approved in other licensing districts in South Wales, the Southwest and 

the Midlands. 

 

The wrap does not intrude on the licensing identification plate issued by the Council and always 

remains clearly visible to the public view.  

 

The wider context: 

 

Prior to undertaking the transition to corporate signage an independent Research Group carried out 

a market evaluation of the wrap comparable to the general appearance of current licensed 

vehicles. Participants were recruited from Veezu’s passenger base, supplemented with additional 

external recruits.  These additional recruits were taxi passengers in the same area. Across both 

recruitment pools, we ensured a mix of women-only and also mixed groups, covering a wide range 

of ages and usage occasions.  

 

Research groups lasted approximately 60 minutes.  In each group, participants were shown both the 

existing and proposed new Veezu look and feel, including the car wrap design.  

We believe that higher the instant recognition of a pre-booked vehicle is, safeguarding and general 

standards of personal safety, particularly for women, vulnerable Groups and people with visual 

impairments, are significantly enhanced. 

 

The car wrap design was overwhelmingly positive.  Particularly among women, the distinctiveness of 

the hot coral was an added layer of reassurance that the taxi was credible, reliable and above all, 

safe. 

 

The results from 150 respondents concluded that: 

  

•Their biggest concern on taxi/PHV safety is around knowing which company to use and 

recognising the vehicle, particularly in areas people are less familiar with. 

  

•When shown different vehicles, Veezu was overwhelmingly chosen by both men and women as 

the most distinctive and recognisable.  

  

•This was more pronounced for women. 73% of female respondents identified the Veezu vehicle as 

the most distinctive and recognisable. 

  

•The survey strongly validates the rationale for a Veezu car wrap being a powerful safety feature. 

 

Delegated Decisions by licensing officers form part of the day-to-day administrative duties of officers 

but if this application is required to be brought before Members on the basis that it is an application 

outside of the conditions and that it is not for a singular vehicle, but a fleet application, and as such 

may need the wider overview of Elected Members.  

   

Usually, Councils are alert and sensitive to a wide variety of possible conflicts or concerns which 

vehicle signage could cause to communities, but in this application, we feel there is nothing which 

raises such concerns or conflicts with the Council’s licensing policy or conditions.  On the contrary it is 

felt that the easier recognition of a vehicle which has been booked through a particular operator is 

a positive move, not only for the public, but Enforcement Officers also. 

 

Page 12



    
 

veezu.co.uk | info@veezu.co.uk | 02920 333 666 

Veezu Holdings Ltd, Hodge House, 114-116 St. Mary Street, Cardiff, CF10 1DY 
Veezu Holdings Ltd is registered in England and Wales, Company Registration No 09379357, VAT Registration No. 225 9395 82  

   

TEM020/BJ/14062023/v3 – Internal Use Only 

P
a

g
e
3

 

Drivers trying to enter the licensing market face economic challenges on many fronts and the 

opportunity for potential drivers to rent new and compliant vehicles from the Group is attractive and 

growing. Such progression also gives the Council greater assurance that there is stronger oversight of 

the vehicle’s maintenance schedule, in line with the manufacturer’s warranty, by the fleet 

management team of Veezu Business Services.  

 

Driver Partners are further attracted to the newer, environmentally cleaner vehicles displaying the 

wrap because of other discounts available to them in their association with Veezu. 

On a final point, the brand image of the wrap will be clearly associated with the decision of the 

Veezu Group to move away from all petrol or diesel cars to an entirely environmental approach on 

its fleet management. 

 

We would be grateful if suitable arrangements could be made with the Licensing Committee for this 

application to be formally considered if necessary. 

 

 

Thank you for accommodating this request. 

 

Kind regards,  Desmond. 

 

 
Desmond Broster 

National Director – Safeguarding & Licensing 

Veezu 

 

dbroster@veezu.co.uk 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE  

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
27 FEBRUARY 2024 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL TAXI TESTING 

REGIME  
 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, 

HR AND CORPORATE POLICY 
 

Responsible 
Officer:  

                 
KIRSTY EVANS 

LICENSING TEAM MANAGER 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 
The report content has no direct effect upon the policy 

framework and procedure rules. 
 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

AN INFORMATION REPORT PROVIDING MEMBERS WITH 
AN UPDATE ON THE TAXI TESTING REGIME     

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to members on the feasibility study 

in respect of Bridgend County Borough Council’s (BCBC) taxi testing regime.    

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council must be satisfied that a vehicle is in a suitable mechanical condition, 

safe and comfortable before issuing a licence.  
 
2.2 The Council currently uses its powers under Section 50 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to require all vehicles to be presented to the 
Council’s in-house MOT testing station at Ty Thomas Joint Vehicle Maintenance 
Facility, Newlands Avenue, Brackla Industrial Estate, Bridgend. 

 
2.3 On 22 November 2022 the Licensing Committee heard representations from the taxi 

trade, through local Members and a petition of approximately 170 signatories, to open 
taxi testing in Bridgend County Borough Council to other MOT garages.  

 
 The specific request in the petition was to allow for testing in any MOT testing station.  
 
2.4  During this meeting the Licensing Committee resolved to authorise officers to conduct 

a feasibility study on alternative models of discharging our statutory duties in respect 
of the testing and licensing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Following the Committee meeting in November 2022, Licensing Officers from the 

Shared Regulatory Services attended the Management Board that is responsible for 
governance of the Ty Thomas testing facility to discuss the current agreement that 
exists between BCBC and South Wales Police. At this meeting, a discussion took 
place on the possibility of an early exit from the taxi testing agreement, but it was 
confirmed that the existing testing arrangements will run for the initial fixed term 
entered into between both parties, which expires in March 2025.  

  
3.2  Due to this binding date, the feasibility study will now take place in the 2024-25 

financial year. This will ensure that Members have the most up to date, relevant 
information to enable them to make an informed decision.  

 
3.3 The feasibility study will consider four models: 
 

 Proprietors obtain a MOT Certificate from any MOT testing station in the 

County Borough, and that the same testing station undertakes the additional 

taxi compliance check.  

 

 Proprietors obtain a MOT Certificate from any MOT testing station in the 

County Borough but require a separate taxi compliance check to be 

undertaken in-house. 

 

 Select an approved number of MOT testing stations to conduct MOT testing 

and/or taxi compliance checks. 

 

 Retain the current in-house regime.  

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
 
4.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would 

be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on 
socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not 
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 

Page 18



 

 
7.1 There are no safeguarding and corporate parent implications arising from this report. 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 Income received in 2022-2023 by Ty Thomas through taxi test fees was £49,785. The 

feasibility study and consultation will encompass all financial implications of the 
options open to Members.  

 
9. Recommendations 

 
9.1 That Members note the contents of the report and await a feasibility report on 

alternative models of discharging our statutory duties in respect of the testing and 
licensing of taxis (hackney carriage and private hire vehicles).  

 
Background documents 
 
None. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Minutes , 24/05/2023 Licensing Act 2003 Committee

	4 Cais i Ganiatáu defnyddio Brandio Corfforaethol ar Gerbydau sy'n eiddo i Veezu
	Appendix A - Veezu Application for Livery
	Appendix B - Digetal Impression of Proposed Livery

	5 Trefn Profi Tacsi Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr

